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RFP TITLE: Medicare Retiree Health Benefits 

 

RFP NUMBER:      66FY19 

 

The following questions were received in response to the Request for Proposals issuance and Pre-

proposal Conference. 

1) Can you please confirm that a non-officer individual with the authority to bind a contract is sufficient 

to sign all applicable signature documents required for this RFP submission? 

a. The documents are to be signed by an individual duly authorized to bind the entity to 

Arlington Public Schools in contractual matters. 

2) Can you please confirm that in order to minimize printing, we can provide large attachments and 

requested samples and brochures on a USB drive? 

a. Yes. 

 

3) Can you please confirm if the Kaiser members are part of this proposal?     

a. Kaiser plan is not a part of this Request for Proposal.  Kaiser members may choose to change 

to the Medicare Advantage plan at open enrollment. 

 

4) Please clarify if the electronic copies should include the Cost Proposal?  The below noted section 

seem to give to different directions.    

Page 14, IV. Proposal Requirements, A. General Requirements 

      The requirements for delivery.  In the chart it states 2 electronic copies which should have: 

• Proposal response in pdf format 

• Technical Proposal in Excel format 

• Cost Proposal in Excel format 

 

In the third paragraph below this section the last sentence states: 

“The electronic copies of the Proposal should not contain or make any reference to pricing 

information.” 

a. The directions in the table are correct. 

 

5) Please explain the Rx coverage these retirees currently have in place?   

a. Generally, the retirees with Medicare Advantage only coverage would have Tricare coverage 

for Rx. 
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6) Are these retirees identified on the census? Page 9, II. Scope of Work, B. Coverage and Plan Design 

Standards.  Offeror must be able to provide a national passive PPO group Medicare Advantage plan 

only (no Medicare Part D Rx) to those retirees whom APS states have prescription coverage 

elsewhere. 

a. Yes, they are the yellow highlighted rows on the census in the Companion file.  Note, their 

retiree contribution dollar amount and total rate are not correct, but the retiree contribution % 

is correct. 

             

7) If any benefits changed from the claims experience period to the current benefit period, please 

indicate what changes were made.   If this list is not available, provide the benefit summaries that 

would correspond with each claims experience period.   

 

To ensure that we are accurately matching benefits to result in minimal member disruption, we 

will need to better understand how the member’s current plan coordinates with Medicare.  If the 

Summary Plan Documents are available, we may be able to determine the method of coordination 

from the language within the SPD.  We need to understand what the member’s liability is after 

Medicare and the Plan have both paid.  Please confirm which of the following examples best 

describe how the Medicare Retiree plan design works today.  Some examples of coordination we 

see most often are as follows: 

Example 1 

-Medicare Pays 80% 

-Plan document states the Plan will pay remaining amount up to allowed amount and up 

to percentage listed on summary.  In this simple scenario, the plan would pay the 

remaining 20% coinsurance and the member would be responsible for no out of pocket 

costs. 

If there are any plan deductibles or copayment amounts, please confirm if the members 

are still responsible for these amounts. 

Example 2 

-Medicare Pays 80% 

-Plan document states the Plan will pay based on remaining amount after Medicare pays 

(20%).  Plan will then pay the percentage that is listed on the summary and apply it to the 

remaining amount.  In this scenario, the plan would pay 80% of the remaining 20% of the 

charge.  This would result in the member being responsible for a 4% coinsurance after 

both Medicare and the plan have paid. 

Example 3 

-Medicare Pays 80% 

-Plan document states the Plan will only make payment if the amount paid by Medicare is 

less than what the plan would have paid if it were primary.  In this scenario, the plan 

would have paid 80%, but because Medicare had already paid the 80%, the plan will pay 

nothing and the member will be responsible for 20%. 

a. There have been no plan design changes over the claim experience period provided in the 

Companion file.  The current Medicare plan is a Plan N (Medi-gap) plan – therefore, none of 

your traditional coordination methods above apply.  There are copays currently for office 

visits, ER and the Part B deductible – per the Plan N design. 
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8) What is the contribution level of the employer? (percent and dollar amount of premium – if it varies 

by years of service, please provide average years of service and average employer monthly funding.) 

a. The census in the Companion File provides the retiree contribution % for Offerors to 

calculate the average premium % paid by retirees for the current retiree group.  The rest of 

the premium (1-average retiree contribution %) is APS’ portion of the premium. 

 

9) It is understood that in certain situations retirees pay for medical benefits through their employer 

sponsored pension. The offeror may allow those funds to be included as part of the employer 

contribution.  Please advise if the following requirements are met: 

i. The pension plan must limit the use of the pension funds to group healthcare related 

premiums. 

ii. The pension plan must not allow retirees to use their pension funds outside of the 

employer sponsored MA plan.  The pension funds may not be used to purchase MA 

plans on the exchange. 

iii. The pension plan must not allow retirees to use pension funds for any other purpose 

in the event they choose not to enroll in the group sponsored MA plan.  The pension 

funds must be offered on a “use it, or lose it” basis. 

a. These are not applicable to APS’ retiree health coverage.  

 

10) Has a cap been placed on the employer contribution? If so, what is the cap level?   

a. The employer cap is described on page 8 of 57 in RFP 66FY19.pdf. 

 

11) Please indicate whether retirees are allowed to come back on the plan if they have previously opted 

out of the employer sponsored plan.   

a. No, a retiree cannot reenroll in plan once they have opted out. 

 

12) Please confirm if the population is a closed group with no newly retired members eligible to join.  

a. No, it is an open group. 

 

13) Will the members be eligible to remain on the active (commercial) plan in addition to the Medicare 

Advantage offering? 

a. No. 

 

14) Please provide incurred monthly medical claims and member counts for the most recent 24 

months.  Include only subscribers & dependents that are retired and have Medicare as their primary 

carrier.  If claims are reflective of incurred dates, indicate the “paid through” date. 

a. This data is in the Companion file. 

 

15) Please provide incurred monthly Rx claims for the most recent 24 months for Medicare eligible 

subscribers & dependents including either monthly member count or PMPM.  Also, please indicate 

whether the claims are net of rebates and member cost share.   

a. This data is in the Companion file.  

 

16) What types of communications do your members currently receive from UHC? 

a. For EGWP Rx – CMS required materials, UHC Benefit Summary and Plan Guide 

For Medicare Supplemental – UHC Benefit Summary and Plan Guide 

  

17) What % of eligible retirees enroll in the group sponsored plan? 
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a. For the members with Medicare retiree health coverage (Kaiser or UHC), approximately 21% 

are in the Kaiser Medicare plan.  APS does not track the individuals who waived retiree 

health coverage to assess the % of members enrolled in the plan in total. 

 

18) Of those that enroll, what % disenroll? 

a. APS does not have this information 

 

19) Are there any benefits UHC doesn’t provide that you’d like to have offered? 

a. Offerors are expected to provide APS their best proposal in accordance with the plan design 

requested in the Technical Excel file.  APS does not have a group Medicare Advantage plan 

today therefore it is not appropriate to compare to the current benefit plan. 

 

20) Can you confirm that APS is requesting a contract review with exceptions noted to be included at the 

time of proposal submission, or will we submit exceptions for review during a later stage? There are 

references in the RFP document to exceptions/changes submitted as part of the proposal as well as at 

the beginning of negotiations. 

Exceptions are to be submitted with the Proposal response as part of Tab 6. However, if APS makes a 

material change to the RFP after the Proposal Due Date Offerors can submit exceptions to the material 

change in accordance with Section V. Proposed Evaluation Process, Method of Contract Award and 

Proposal Formation.   

 

21) Does the current plan design match the requested plan design? If not, can you provide the plan design 

in place that correlates to the claims experience provided, along with the type of coordination with 

Medicare? 

a. For prescription drugs – yes.  For medical – it is close to a Plan N design, however, we have 

adjusted the copays for emergency room, urgent care; and have added non-Medicare covered 

services per the Technical RFP plan design deviations tab.  Attached are copies of the current 

benefit summaries for 2019.  There have been no changes in design, other than CMS changes 

as applicable. 

 

22) Is APS seeking an open formulary or closed formulary? What type is in place currently? 

a. Per the Technical RFP file (tab:  Plan Design_Clinical_Formulary) APS expects Offerors to 

provide an Enhanced formulary to minimize the disruption to members, including coverage 

for non-Part D covered drugs.  The current formulary is an enhanced formulary. 

 

23) May companies based outside the United States (e.g. India or Canada) submit a response to this RFP?  

a. Yes, companies based outside the United States may respond to the RFP.  

 

24) Can proposals be submitted via email? 

a. No. 

 

25) Will the eventual contractor for the solutions be required to attend on-site meetings?  

a. Yes. It is required that the contractor be available to attend on-site meetings as required or 

necessary. This may depend on the project phase or activity.  

 

26) Can tasks related to the eventual contract be performed outside the United States (e.g. India or 

Canada)?  

a. Some yes, may be completed outside the United States, but not all. 

 

27) Will Arlington Public Schools allow one-week extension to the RFP deadline? 

a. No. 

 

 


